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Minutes  from the  Past:
November 5, 1896, Trus tees  of Plainview M. E. Church 

...Motion carried tha t we build an addition to the buggy 
shed on Parsonage  Bam, not to exceed $15 in cos t...

October 22, 1901, Official Board of M.E....motion carried tha t 
the  Pas tor’s sa la ry for the  year be fixed a t $700 and the  
parsonage from Pla inview.

October 11, 1938, S unday S chool Board:...Reverend Ludden ... 
told of the (board meeting) program followed in Elgin and 
urged a definite  program be followed here ...the  following 
program was accepted. One teacher present some materia l 
a t each meeting, then a chapte r or portion of a s tudy book 
ca lled “New Trails  in Religious  Teaching,” by Rev. Lud-
den, to be followed by the business meeting....Mrs . Mundt 
asked what to do about continued absentees . She had done 
a ll she knew to ge t them back a ll to no ava il.

S eptember 6, 1939, Ladies  Aid....The pres ident announced the  
furnace a t the parsonage had been tom down and was be-
yond repa ir. It was decided for the a id to pay what they 
could bes t a fford toward a  new furnace....A Motion was  
made and seconded and carried to charge  40 cents a  pla te  
for the chicken pie  supper.

July 21, 1957, Board of Trus tees ...The . entire  board inspected 
the S iebena ler house with a view of purchasing it as a  par-
sonage .

February 21, 1963, Father & S on Banquet...Menu: Ham loaf. 
Mashed potatoes and gravy. Baked beans , Carrot s ticks . 
Ce lery, Rolls , P ickles , Je lly, Coffee , Milk, Cherry pie .

April 23, 1964, Board of Trus tees ..At was moved by K. Briggs  
and seconded by Lloyd Bentley to se ll the old parsonage by 
the church and use the money to repa ir the other parson-
age ...passed

October 6, 1977, United Methodis t Women...new business  is  
the  Bazaar...The Bazaar will s ta rt a t 9:00 a .m. until ap-
proximately 2:30 p.m.. On-the-spot doughnuts  will be  
fried....There  will be fancy work, candy and garden prod-
ucts ...Soup, Bar-b-ques  and-pie  will be se rved for $1.75.
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Pl a in v e wMe ih o d k iHis id r y
*

Pla inview Village , firs t ca lled "Centerville" was pla tted in 
the summer of 1857, and tha t Augus t, the  firs t re ligious  organi-
za tion of any kind was formed in P la inview.

Oliver Perry Crawford, a  preacher in the Methodis t Episco-
pal Church, came from Indiana and se ttled a t Fores t Mound, 
wes t of Pla inview in Elgin township. He held services in 
homes , and in Augus t of 1857 organized a  class  of e ight a t Cen-
te rville . They were : J .Y. Blackwell, Guerdon Town, Sophronia  
Town, Sam Lattie , Mrs . La ttie , Mathilda  Todd, Mrs . Thompson, 
and Edwin L. Ball.

This  class  of e ight was included in the S t. Charles  circuit of 
the Methodis t Episcopal Church a t the Quarterly Conference  
held in St. Charles September 19, 1857. The firs t minis te r was  
Dwight Kidder, from 1857-1858.

The P la inview socie ty continued as a  part of the St. Charles  
circuit until the fourth quarte rly conference in March, 1859, 
when it was reques ted the  circuit be divided into the St. Charles  
and Greenwood Pra irie  circuits .

The firs t quarte rly conference of the Greenwood Circuit was  
he ld a t P la inview in July, 1859. This circuit was composed of 
s ix preaching places : Fores t Mound, Murphys , P la inview, Farm-
ington, Fitch's  and Morrows .

In September 1860, the Greenwood Circuit grew to e ight 
preaching places . And one year la ter there were 103 full mem-
bers recorded in the circuit.

The names of those who were firs t baptized and recorded
were Jeshua Davies and John B. Davies , baptized October 21,
1860. The firs t names to appear on the record as members are••
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Hiram and Phobe Allen, the former and loca l Deacon and 
Chuancy and Eliza  Cornwell, Mrs . Jane Rock, oldes t member of 
the  church for over 50 years , died May 12 1920 a t the age of 93. 
In the record of marriages the names of Andrew G. Crawford 
and Maria  A. Bas ton appear, the parties be ing united by Ezra  
Trecker, November 14, 1860. The record a lso showed tha t 
many of the  weddings  in those  days  were  held e ither a t the  home 
of the  bride  or groom.

In this  ea rly day, four Quarte rly Conferences  were  held each 
year, rota ting among the diffe rent points of the circuit. At the  
fourth quarterly Conference of the Greenwood Circuit, he ld in 
June , 1863, the Pres iding Elder was  requested to secure change  
of name of the circuit from Greenwood to Pla inview; and the  
firs t Quarterly Conference of the P la inview Circuit was held a t 
P la inview in October, 1863.

The average pas tora te during those early days was two 
years . In la ter years , it averaged four years  or more .

By 1870 the 8 preaching places had been reduced to 3 or 4. 
In 1919 P lainview was  a  s ingle  appointment, but this  las ted only 
a few years . Plainview then shared a pas tor with Beaver for a  
number of years .

From 1927 until 1936 the Pla inview Methodis t Episcopa l 
and the Congrega tiona l Churches were federa ted and known as 
the Community Church, with a Methodis t Pas tor in charge . 
During this time the pews from the Methodis t church were re-
moved to the  Congrega tiona l building, which was used for wor-
ship services and Senior Sunday School. The Methodis t build-
ing was used for J r. Sunday School and educa tiona l and group 
work, as well as a  dining ha ll (for chicken suppers and Mother 
and Daughter Banquets ). The minis te rs tha t se rved during this  
period were  Reverends G.E. Martin, C.W. Gilman, C.E. Saute r, 
and F. Greene .
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When this federa tion was dissolved in 1936 the Methodis ts  
aga in became known as the Pla inview Methodis t Episcopa l 
Church, sharing a  pas tor for a  number of years  with Elgin.

In 1939 three  branches  of Methodism, the  Methodis t Episco-
pa l Church, The Methodis t Episcopa l Church South, and The  
Methodis t Protes tant Church, united under the name “The 
Methodis t Church.” Formerly known as The Methodis t Episco-
pa l church of P la inview, our church then incorpora ted under the  
new name, becoming known as ‘The  Firs t Methodis t Church.”

Rev. C.F.H. Guse , a re tired miss ionary from India , was ap-
pointed pas tor to this charge by the Minnesota Conference in 
1934. A Pound Party was he ld for Rev. and Mrs . Guse , where  
everyone was to bring a pound of something to he lp them get 
s ta rted housekeeping afte r the re turn from miss ionary work in 
India . Tragedy s truck in June , 1937, when Rev. Guse  was killed 
while  on a  fishing trip.

Other minis ters tha t were ass igned to Pla inview and Elgin 
charge were : Revs . C.P . Baenziger, George Chant, and Charles  
Sheffie ld. In 1959 the union with Elgin ended. We were then 
ass igned to share with Millville  the following minis ters : Revs . 
Walte r Crabtree , Richard Horton and Rev A.E. Dripps . When 
the Millville Church was discontinued Weaver and Kellogg 
joined with Plainview and formed what is ca lled the Hiawatha  
Valley United Methodis t Parish. Richard Horton became pas tor, 
followed by Luther Pennington.

P la inview remained in the Hiawatha Valley United 
Methodis t Parish until it merged with the Elgin Church in June 
1998. The merged congrega tions  chose to be known as Peace 
United Methodis t Church. Reverend Lavem Johnson was ap-
pointed to se rve  this  new charge .
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*

Parsonage

In April, 1861, the Quarte rly Conference approved the pur-
chase of lots for a parsonage and appointed a committee  com-
posed of "Light" (Preacher in Charge), Soule , (Ass is tant 
Preacher) and Yale to circulate subscriptions . In October 1862, 
there was a motion tha t "we build a  parsonage a t the P la inview 
forthwith." The cos t of this  firs t parsonage was $701.40. It was  
located on the property eas t of the  present creamery.

Approximate ly 5 years la te r this parsonage was offe red for 
sa le  for not less  than $700, the  proceeds  to be applied to building 
a new parsonage on the present parsonage lot. This parsonage 
was erected in 1890 and served its  purpose well for a period of 
76 years , when a new parsonage was cons tructed on the same 
spot in 1966.

Prior to tha t time , in Augus t of 1957, a parsonage had been 
purchased in the res identia l area to house the minis te r and his  
family, who for the pas t 10 or 12 years had res ided in Elgin, 
while we shared a minis te r with them. But after about 6 or 8 
years  this  parsonage was offe red for sa le  a long with the firs t one  
of 1890. In December of 1964 the Trus tees recommended tha t 
a new parsonage be built on the grounds south of the church. 
Bids were rece ived and Mr. Amoldy hired as contractor. The 
new parsonage was built and dedica ted on October 9, 1966. 
Rev. Richard Horton, pas tor, and Dr. Edward Foote , Roches te r, 
Dis trict Superintendent, were present for the dedica tion.
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*

Church Building

It was not until 1866 that the firs t church building was 
e rected. Prior to this time church services were he ld in the  
homes or the  country schools .

The lot for the  church was  purchased from Jesse  Landon for 
$200.00 and the warranty deed is dated May 15, 1866. The  
trus tees tha t s igned the deed were : John Yale , G.A. Frizze ll, 
C.C. Cornwell, and E.C. White . This building was a s imple  
rectangle 33 by 60 feet and the tota l cos t of construction was  
$4,000. The mortgage carried 12 per cent inte res t. In April, 
1877, 11 years la te r, it is happily reported "Paid $200, the ba l-
ance  of the  church debt."

In 1894 the church was remodeled. A large ves try of two 
s tories extended to the s tree t was added to the front of the  
church, making needed Sunday School rooms and a lso a  kitchen 
and dining room ups ta irs , where many chicken suppers were  
se rved to he lp defray expenses of the time .

In the summer of 1941 some of the members  of the congre-
ga tion and our pas tor. Rev. Baenziger, inves tigated the  cos t of a  
furnace  and basement, which revealed the  impractica lity of pro-
ceeding with the building project due to war conditions . So the  
old furnace was pa tched up and the money inves ted in War 
Bonds. In the spring of 1948, Louis Boehlke was employed as  
contractor and the work begun on the second major remodeling 
of the church. The church was ra ised, moved back from the
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s tree t onto a full basement founda tion, remodeled, redecora ted 
ins ide and out, re roofed and a  new heating sys tem ins ta lled. The 
front double entrance was changed to a s ingle entrance in the  
remodeling process . This necess ita ted the borrowing of $7,000 
from the Firs t National Bank. This was done and a mortgage  
placed upon the church property December 1, 1948.

Trus tees s igning this deed were : C.W. Herman, Louis  
Mundt, Kenneth Briggs , Ralph Edwards . The entire cos t of the  
project was about $21,000, including about $1,500 worth of do-
na ted labor by the men and women of the church.

These improvements were comple ted and the firs t services  
were he ld in the newly remodeled and redecorated church on 
Pa lm Sunday, April 10, 1949 when Rev. George  Chant was pas-
tor. Since the comple tion of the work, the WSCS took it upon 
themselves to pay off the mortgage and with some he lp of indi-
vidua l gifts made the Final payment in December, 1954, jus t 6 
years a fter assuming the debt.

The $7,000 mortgage was pa id up and burned a t a specia l 
Sunday Evening Service on May 1, 1955 with Rev. Charles  
Sheffie ld as pas tor.

Methodis t Episcopal Church 1894
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*

Organizations

The exact da te of the organiza tion of the  Ladies ’ Aid is  not 
known, but it is  be lieved to have been in the  ea rly 1880’s , for 
we find in the Quarte rly Conference  records of January, 1882, 
the firs t mention of the “Young Ladies Aid Socie ty.” This  
group was composed of the older women of the church. The  
younger women, fee ling the need of an organiza tion of the ir 
own, organized the “Priscilla” socie ty in the la te 1890’s . These  
groups  functioned separa te ly for a  number of years . About 1916 
the  Ladies  Aid dissolved and the Priscillas  took the ir place . 
La te r, however, they aga in became the  Ladies  Aid.

The  Women’s Fore ign Miss ionary Socie ty was organized 
on November 2, 1906, with 14 members . A Women’s Home 
Miss ionary Socie ty was a lso organized, but s ince it was mos tly 
the same ladies  in both groups , they joined forces  in la te r years  
and were known as ‘The  Miss ionary Socie ty,” with interes t in 
and supporting the work of both fore ign and home miss ions .

There was a lso in the women’s work a  socie ty of unmar-
ried young ladies  of the  church, under the  leadership of Miss  
Mary Bolton, ca lled the “Queen Es ther Socie ty,” which was or-
ganized about 1913 or 1914.

The union of the  three branches  of Methodism in 1939 ne-
cess ita ted some changes in the organiza tiona l procedure . In 
1940 a ll women’s work was combined into the Women’s Soci-
e ty of Chris tian Service , with Mrs . Louis  Mundt as the firs t 
Pres ident. The members  of the Women’s Socie ty of Chris tian
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Service  a lso formed three  circles , two meeting in the a fte rnoon 
and one meeting in the  evening.

On September 2, 1965, The  W.S.C.S . observed the ir S il-
ver anniversary and gave specia l recognition to the  charte r 
members : Mmes . D.G. Mahle , C.W. Herman, Earl Lehnertz, 
Alvin Rottke , Harold Schwanbeck, Fay Wood, Louis  Mundt, 
Lloyd Melendy, Kenneth Briggs , Ed Apple , Elmer Ableitner, 
Walte r Briese , Se lma Aus tin, Clarence Kruger, James  Mont-
gomery, William Rosenberg, Floyd Bennett, Ra lph Edwards , 
Glenn Brooks , Helma Colby, W.E. Mahle , Norman McFarlin, 
John Turner and Misses  Nellie  LaRocque , and Netta  Gorre ll.

The firs t Sunday School in the village  of P la inview was or-
ganized in 1861 with Franklin Sylves ter as superintendent. This  
school evidently grew rapidly and in July 1867 P la inview re-
ported 108 Sunday School schola rs . The Sunday School has  
ca rried on through the years . In 1954 Mrs . D.G. Mahle  prepared 
a  color film s trip illus tra ting what can be done in the Sunday 
School kindergarten us ing the loca l kindergarten children and 
our church. She showed how to he lp advance  the work with 
pre-school children.

The  young people 's  work was  firs t s ta rted about 1885 with 
the organization of a  Junior League by Mrs . Raveill, the minis-
te r’s wife . The older young people  of the  church were orga-
nized into an Epworth League by Professor VanDyke in 1891, 
with 14 members . This  chapter of the  Epworth League was  
known as the  VanDyke Chapter. The  group grew rapidly, and in 
five  years  the membership was reported as  42, though “Young 
People” was  very e las tic and reached up into the mid-thirties  a t 
leas t. Through the  years  these  organiza tions have  had the ir ups  
and downs with membership fluctua ting cons iderably.

The Epworth League and the S tandard Bearers  changed to 
the Methodis t Youth Fe llowship, for a ll young people from
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ages 12 to 23, a fter the organiza tional changes in 1939 which 
merged the three  branches of Methodism.

In 1951 a  Methodis t Men’s group was organized with Dr. 
D.G. Mahle  as the  firs t pres ident. The P la inview chapte r of 
Methodis t Men rece ived the ir na tiona l charte r as an officia l 
Methodis t Men’s Group in 1954. Pancake suppers were the ir 
main money-ra is ing events  for church work projects .

Other money-ra is ing events  have been the  Mother and 
Daughter Banquet, s ta rted by the  Ladies  Aid and s till ca rried on 
by the  Women’s Socie ty of Chris tian Service today as the  
Mother/Daughter/Friend Spring Sa lad Supper. One event of in-
te res t was when Mrs  Lucia  Nunamaker, who lived on the  Will 
Hass ig fa rm in the 1800’s , rece ived a quantity of maple  sugar 
from a re la tive in the  Eas t. She and the church ladies  made it 
into syrup and they served hot biscuits  and maple  syrup (a ll you 
could ea t) as a  means of ra is ing money for the church.

fljoTAzf ~ QanftizT
Pltki/tViC.Aur9.i\ 

Way tq Sq by Roxanne Mahle
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*

People  in Ministry

From its  beginning under a  loca l preacher, P . O. Crawford, 
whose granddaughter, Mrs . Edgar Putnam, res ided in Elgin, the  
P la inview Church has been giving of its  members  into full or 
part-time Chris tian Service . Edwin V. Squires  was given a  Lo-
ca l Preacher’s license . This  was in 1880 for one year. Then in 
1904 we find him aga in lis ted as a  loca l preacher. Fred Nelson 
was granted a  Loca l Preacher’s license . Reverend Ralph Car- 
le ton was another church member to go into the  full-time min-
is try. Miss  Mary Bolton, active  church member and a  one-time 
class leader, se rved as superintendent of Grenoble  Orphanage in 
France in 1919 and 1920.

In the “Beaver S tory” book in the activities  section, by Al-
ice  Card Hancock, Reverend Carle ton was  the speaker a t the ir 
Harves t Fes tiva l he ld a t the  Town Hall. “He was earnes t, dy-
namic and liked by everyone , and his  name on the advertise-
ment brought a  crowd.”

The Miss ionary speakers  we have had a t our church and 
whom we have he lped support the ir a re : Reverend Wallace  
Hanks from the Congo, Reverend Julian Nave from India , 
Charles  Mosebrook, from the Philippines  and Ivan Northdorft 
from Bolivia  and Peru, South America . These events  usua lly 
s ta rted with a  family potluck dinner on a  Sunday.

The  firs t organ of record was  purchased in 1882 for $150 
and a  be ll for $200 was reported in July, 1888. Another organ
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was purchased in 1891 a t a  cos t of $75. In 1903 an organ was  
given to the  church in memory of Electa  Sylves te r, organis t for 
many years , who los t her life  in the  Iroquois  Thea tre  fire  in 
Chicago. In 1962 an e lectric organ and chimes were gifts  to the  
church from Lewis  Dickerman in memory of his  wife , Adah. In 
1970 a  piano was a  gift to the  church in memory of Mrs . W.E. 
Mahle .

The  s ix beautiful s ta ined glass  windows  in the church were  
ins ta lled in 1894 as memoria ls  to T.G. Bolton, Arthur J . Carroll, 
James  Lynch, Samuel McLaughlin, Reverend W.M Gillis  and 
the  VanDyke Chapter of the  Epworth League .
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Plainview Methodis t Church
1857 -1957

Firs t Methodis t Organiza tion in P la inview August, 1857 
Firs t Quarte rly Conference  
Firs t Minis te r 
Firs t Sunday School 
Firs t Church Erected 
Firs t Women’s Fore ign Miss ionary Society November, 1906

January 2-3, 1858 
Dwight Kidder 
April, 1861
1866

About 1860 the Greenwood circuit had a Preacher in Charge , 
and a lso an Ass is tant Preacher. The cla ims for that year show: 

Pres iding Elder:
Preacher in Charge :
Ass is tant Preacher:

$ 32.00
$400.00
$200.00

Memoria l Service , June 30, 1957 
Golden Years  Banquet, September 12, 1957 
Centennia l Service , October 27, 1957 with Bishop Coors  

Reverend Charles  Sheffie ld, Pas tor 
Dr. D.G. Mahle , Choir Director 
Miss  Florence Posz, Organis t 

“Let gra titude for the past inspire us with trus t for the fu-
ture . In Chape l or Ca thedral, in s imple meeting house or 
rura l church, God can be found of men; and men’s needs  
can be met by Him. Our Church is  rich with the fe llow-
ship of Chris tians , swee t with the fragrance of many com-
munions , beautiful with the freshness of God’s cleans ing 
power. God bless the Church—Our Church!”
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Pas tors

Dwight Kidder, 1857-1858; 
Benjamin Cris t, 1858-1859;
S . M. Phe lps , 1859-1860; 
Oliver P . Light, 1860-1861; 
John Quigley, 1861-1862; 
Noah La throp, 1862-1863; 
Bartley Blain, 1863-1865;
A. Wliford, 1865-1866;
W. C. Rice 1866-1869;
M.D. Terwilliger, 1869-1870; 
Wm. M. Bowdish, 1871-1873; 
Henry G. Bilbie , 1873-1875; 
W. W. Rork, 1875-1876;
Pe ter Cla re , 1876-1878;
JJ . Cris t, 1878-1879;
Lynd Wright, 1879-1880; 
Frank B. Cowgill, 1880-1882; 
Alfred Cressey, 1882-1884; 
John W. Rave ill, 1884-1886;
T. B. Killiam, 1886-1887;
W.L. Langrell, 1887-1891; 
W.M. Gillis , 1891-1896;
W.E. King, 1896-1902;
D. M. Johns ton, 1902-1904; 
H.F. Ackerman, 1904-1907; 
Lincoln Hughes , 1907-1908;
E. A. Pa lmer, 1908-1910;
Oscar Smith, 1910;
Joseph R. Je ffrey, 1910-1913; 
J .R. Hitchcock, 1913-1916;

Jesse  Kenderdins , 1916-1919; 
James E. Rains , 1919-1920;
R. Prescott, 1920-1921;
Wm. Wooley, 1921-1923;
H. D. Bossue t, 1923-1925;
I. N. Goodell, 1925-1927;
G. E. Martin, 1927-1930;
C.W. Gilman, 1930-1934;
C.E. Saute r, 1934-1935;
F. Green, 1935-1936;
C.H.F. Guse , 1936-1937;
Paul Ludden, 1937-1941;
C.P . Baenziger, 1941-1946; 
George Chant, 1947-1951; 
Charles  Sheffie ld, 1951-1959; 
Walte r Crabtree , 1959-1962; 
Allen Dripps , 1962-1964; 
Richard Horton, 1964-1969; 
Luther Pennington, 1969-1975; 
Warren White , 1975-1979; 
Ramon Olson; 1979-1986;
Gary Bruening, 1986;
Harold Kraft, 1987;
Dennis  Cox-Townsend, 1987-1996; 
Lyle  Krumrie , 1996-1998;
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